#### **California Debt Limit Allocation Committee**

Jesse Unruh Building Room 587 915 Capitol Mall Sacramento, CA 95814 **August 7, 2020** Meeting Minutes

### OPEN SESSION

### 1. Call to Order and Roll Call

State Treasurer Fiona Ma called the California Debt Limit Allocation Committee (CDLAC) meeting to order at 9:02 am.

Members Present:	Fiona Ma, CPA, State Treasurer
	Ms. Miller for Gavin Newsom, Governor
	Mr. Sertich for Betty T. Yee, State Controller
Advisory Members Present:	Gustavo Velasquez, Department of Housing and Community Development Ms. Boatman-Patterson, California Housing Finance Agency

### 2. Approval of the Minutes of June 17, 2020 and July 15, 2020 Meetings (Action Item)

Ms. Blackwell provided a summary of edits to the minutes to the Board.

Treasurer Ma stated this was an action item.

**MOTION:** Ms. Miller moved to approve the minutes as edited for the June 17, 2020 and July 15, 2020 meetings, Mr. Sertich seconded and the motion passed unanimously via a roll call vote.

### 3. Discussing and Choose Between Various Regulation Structures and Strategies. (Action Item)

<u>Ms. Blackwell</u> stated that she sent information to every board member and thanked them for being supportive to staff during this time when the new 4% program was implemented based on AB101 and the \$500 million dollars the Governor and the Legislature graciously provided. Ms. Blackwell mentioned that the February round was a difficult round and staff was able to put the program together in two to three months. She stated that this effort has already paid off. Ms. Blackwell stated that the numbers that have

come in thus far indicate that we have exceeded unit production for low-income housing by 63.05% and the year is not over. She indicated that there is still another round of 4% applications to be discussed in September. Ms. Blackwell stated that the total number of low-income units has increased by 68%, an increase in extremely low-income units by 42.74% and an increase in very low-income units by 66.82%.

<u>Ms. Blackwell</u> thanked everyone and asked to continue on with the meeting's discussion and said there would be a robust discussion regarding Mr. Sertich's proposal and CHC's proposal. Ms. Blackwell stated that there was no discussion about the technical changes that staff has been looking at. She stated that the primary point of these changes is to make sure that CDLAC and TCAC are aligned. Senior management from both departments would present the proposed changes.

Ms. Blackwell thanked everyone and asked to move on to item #3.

Treasurer Ma asked for Mr. Sertich's input.

<u>Mr. Sertich</u> stated that he had a question on the numbers that Ms. Blackwell presented. He mentioned that it is great to have full-time staff working hard and said that the annual report states that there were only 17,000 units created last year.

<u>Ms. Blackwell</u> stated that Mr. Sertich was correct. She then mentioned that the annual report discussed 9% and 4% combined and that the numbers she presented were only for the 4% numbers. She stated that if the report said there were 17,000 units in the 4% program, that figure was too high. She would have to go back and check.

Treasurer Ma asked for Ms. Boatman-Patterson's input.

<u>Ms. Boatman-Patterson</u> stated that the 2019 numbers compare new construction to new construction yearover-year and that the numbers do not include any preservation.

<u>Mr. Zeto</u> stated that the first six tables consist of many of the items that they are proposing changes to. The first few items have to do with experience and are proposing changes to the threshold on the CDLAC side. Mr. Zeto mentioned that on the 4% CDLAC side, if one does not meet the minimum score in each of those categories, the general partners can attend a CTCAC training prior to the project being serviced. This is extended to general partners under a clause that the department has.

<u>Mr. Kass</u> stated that this is also a requirement of CDLAC. Though it is not a scoring point category, CDLAC does look at the general partner's information during the first review. Mr. Kass states that this is one area where CTCAC and CDLAC are similar as it is part of the threshold used during CDLAC's initial review.

<u>Mr. Zeto</u> stated that housing needs were the next item on the chart. Housing needs are a threshold requirement for TCAC on the 9% side. Mr. Zeto mentioned that CDLAC has a point category for large

family units. Furthermore, Mr. Zeto mentioned that large family projects receive points, so, adding points to senior projects or projects that have 50% of the units that are homeless is a proposed change. With this, Mr. Zeto stated that these points would put other projects "on par as far as competitive, as they could score the same as a single project with this option."

Ms. Boatman-Patterson asked if that is what was provided for in the 9% program?

<u>Mr. Zeto</u> stated that the housing needs category in the 9% program does provide for this. Mr. Zeto mentioned that the focus of the housing needs category is that they have alternative ways to score the points, thus wanting to make that available to CDLAC's scoring system.

<u>Ms. Boatman-Patterson</u> stated that there are additional housing types that points are available for. Ms. Boatman-Patterson mentioned that part of the problem with CDLAC's scoring is pretty much incentivized large families and preservation. Furthermore, she mentioned that there are other types of housing needs apart from large families, so just prioritizing giving points to senior and homeless housing makes her question why other types of housing needs are missing.

<u>Ms. Blackwell</u> agreed with Ms. Boatman-Patterson's statement. She mentioned that they were not sure exactly how far the Board wanted to go, but these two housing types are a great priority. Ms. Blackwell stated that these are changes used as a "stopgap measure while we are waiting for the Board to give us direction on our comprehensive changes."

<u>Ms. Boatman-Patterson</u> agreed with Ms. Blackwell's statement. She stated that she believes that 50% is too high. She mentioned that we have a similar set-aside in the 9% program but it is problematic and that you do not want to run into fair housing or Olmstead violations by concentrating individual with special needs.

Ms. Blackwell stated that this was a point well taken and thanked Ms. Boatman-Patterson for the input.

Treasurer Ma asked if they were any other questions or if the meeting could go to the next item.

<u>Mr. Zeto</u> continued to discuss site amenities. He proposed aligning the two BCA requirements and to incorporate them into the CDLAC requirement to increase the point options. He recommended using TCAC's whole number of points, as the numbers are close to being aligned. He mentioned that, with regards to service amenities, TCAC has an option for case managers and would like to add on to CDLAC to align the two categories. Furthermore, Mr. Zeto stated that the sustainable building methods are aligned with TCAC, but the building code references are outdated on the CDLAC side so an update would be required.

Ms. Blackwell stated that she believes this was similar to something done last year.

<u>Mr. Zeto</u> stated that there were no recommendations for the Lowest Income and mentioned that "staff is working on aligning the wording of the definitions in this area".

<u>Mr. Sertich</u> stated that he appreciates the attempt to align CDLAC and TCAC. He mentioned that there is a state statute ability for CDLAC to allow TCAC to manage the QRRP program as TCAC regulations would guide the process through Government Code 8869.84(f). Furthermore, he mentioned that this may be easier rather than aligning both departments and making sure that the regulations align constantly.

<u>Ms. Blackwell</u> thanked Mr. Sertich and said that his suggestion would work well as use of both sets of staff would make everything run more efficient.

<u>Mr. Sertich</u> stated that the goal is to align everything with CDLAC and TCAC as much as possible rather than having two mirror sets of regulations.

Treasurer Ma asked what would be done with the CDLAC regulations? Align everything?

Mr. Kass stated that there are some subtle differences.

Mr. Sertich stated that this could possibly be done for some of the other programs too.

Ms. Miller mentioned that she is unsure about having a single set of regulations.

<u>Ms. Blackwell</u> mentioned that she wants to put Ms. Miller at ease and reminded her that a list of what is to be aligned was presented in the last meeting, but not discussed.

<u>Ms. Miller</u> stated that she understands Ms. Blackwell's statement but that she cannot indicate any consensus as the board has not had time to analyze the proposed changes.

<u>Treasurer Ma</u> stated that there was a recommendation for the housing parts that would allow TCAC to be referenced in case there is misalignment and TCAC would supersede.

<u>Ms. Miller</u> responded to Treasurer Ma that she is unsure if she agrees with their proposed changes but that she understands them.

<u>Treasurer Ma</u> stated that staff would go back and think about all the proposed changes and that today is an informational item, not a vote action item. Furthermore, she stated that it is productive to hear from the board members and their suggestions, so, when the board moves forward, there will be no surprises towards the final regulation changes.

<u>Mr. Zeto</u> stated that readiness to proceed is a point category in the 9% program that staff is proposing to change so that the language currently in the 4% program mirror the requirement for the bonds to be issued within 180 days. Furthermore, Mr. Zeto mentioned two other categories in the 9% program, community revitalization and smoke free residence, that are proposed to be aligned so that the language is the same.

<u>Mr. Velasquez</u> mentioned that he is concerned about the community revitalization category. Mr. Velasquez mentioned that in his own experience, community revitalization "has been a way to continue building in high poverty areas and the definition has always been weak about what that means..."

<u>Ms. Blackwell</u> thanked Mr. Velasquez and mentioned that community revitalization is also a personal interest of hers, and therefore, she would like the chance to further talk to him about the issue.

<u>Mr. Zeto</u> mentioned that for TCAC and CDLAC, negative points are aligned, and a master list is kept. Furthermore, Mr. Zeto stated that staff recommends that preservation points only be available in the preservation pool for at-risk projects.

<u>Ms. Boatman-Patterson</u> stated that Mr. Zeto's statement deals with the issue of the imbalance about the scoring system favoring preservation and large families. She asked if the proposed alignment will get to that issue?

<u>Mr. Zeto</u> stated that the preservation projects are put in their own pool and the points are only going to be available to projects at-risk. Furthermore, he added that preservation projects are eligible for the pool, but only at-risk projects are eligible for those points.

Ms. Boatman-Patterson thanked Mr. Zeto.

Mr. Zeto asked Mr. Kass to talk about the Gross Rents category.

Mr. Kass mentioned that Gross Rents has been talked about internally in CDLAC for a while and it looks at the utility allowance, the California Utility Allowance Calculator (CUAC) and the list of rents. Mr. Kass mentioned that all of CDLAC's applications coming in with the CUAC are garnering the five points, so it is consistent across. He mentioned that it is being recommended to be removed because it is "non-material" as it is something supplied with all of the CDLAC applications. Mr. Kass declared that in the exceeding minimum rent restrictions category, CDLAC is looking at the lowest income and coordinating the lowincome category, and by looking at the rent comparables and developers providing all sorts of information, he believed it is a risk. He suggested that CDLAC coordinate with the way TCAC is doing this by picking the lowest income, as it would be fair across for all developers. Mr. Kass mentioned in the exceeding minimum terms restrictions category, that applications are coming in with the 55 or over 50 year term and all developers are garnering the ten points. He stated that the standard terms used to be 15 or 30 years, but now the bond regulatory agreements are 50 years plus and with everybody receiving points, Mr. Kass believes that this category is not necessary in the CDLAC score card and does not reflect the current environment. Mr. Kass mentioned in the large family units category, both CDLAC and TCAC have their own definition for large family units, so, he states it is important to get these two aligned. CDLAC requires 25% at three or more bedrooms and TCAC requires the two or more bedrooms as a requirement. Mr. Kass mentioned in the leveraging category that he recommends aligning TCAC and CDLAC under this category.

CDLAC allows a taxable tail in their leveraging, which he states is useful in the bond recycling area. Furthermore, he stated that the examination of leveraging could be expanded for both departments, but TCAC has a firmer definition on soft resources. He mentioned that the leveraging category could be expanded to include private philanthropic funding.

<u>Mr. Zeto</u> stated that the leveraging is similar to the current existing TCAC 9% tie-breaker in allocating these, so there is room for larger projects so they can allocate more points. Mr. Zeto stated that this consisted of 60 or more units for rural projects and 100 or more units in other projects.

Treasurer Ma asked how Mr. Zeto got those numbers.

<u>Mr. Zeto</u> stated that they do not expect large projects in rural areas due to the demand in the area, therefore, non-rural projects with 100 or more units receive benefits.

Treasurer Ma asked if Ms. Boatman-Patterson had any questions.

<u>Ms. Boatman-Patterson</u> stated that she wanted to talk about taxable tail and including recyclable bonds as these bonds are a way to bring down the cost of the financing by replacing the taxable tail.

<u>Ms. Blackwell</u> thanked Ms. Boatman-Patterson and mentioned that the board will take a close look at recyclable bonds.

<u>Mr. Kass</u> mentioned that the next item is the Foregone Developer Fee. He stated that this category only comes into play in competitive rounds and the issue is that points are given for every percentage of foregone developer fee. Mr. Kass further stated that this is different than what TCAC is doing in terms of how they are set up and that the developers are trying to use the forgone developer fee in their sources and uses. Mr. Kass suggested to either amend the category to control for that or remove the category entirely. He wants this category to be consistent with TCAC's practices.

<u>Ms. Boatman-Patterson</u> stated that an issue with the bonds and the 4% tax credits is different than the 9% because of the eligible basis. Furthermore, she mentioned that developers are claiming this so they can defer fees.

<u>Mr. Zeto</u> asked if Ms. Boatman-Patterson is talking about the developer fee limits and then the use of the developer fee.

<u>Ms. Boatman-Patterson</u> mentioned that on the bond side, there is no developer fee limit, but there is on the tax credit side. She mentioned that a reason that there are no limits is because they use the developer fee as part of their financing so that they can get to claim it. Furthermore, she stated that developers have more access to the credits because they have more debt. She asked Mr. Kass how this might work on developer fee fit?

<u>Mr. Kass</u> mentioned that this is a case where the eligible basis for the 4% is different than the 9%, therefore the developers could try to take advantage of this when they put their basis together.

<u>Ms. Boatman-Patterson</u> suggested that CDLAC needs to "star" the forgone developer fee so that it is understood how it all fits together. Furthermore, she suggested that aligning the eligible basis just for the sake of aligning it without fully understanding how it fits into the financing needs to be understood before a decision is made.

<u>Ms. Miller</u> agrees with Ms. Boatman-Patterson's statement about aligning just to align CDLAC and TCAC across the board without understanding the specific implications.

<u>Treasurer Ma</u> stated that they were going to open for public comment and would appreciate the developer's suggestions with what had been discussed during the board meeting.

<u>Mr. Kass</u> mentioned that the qualified project period is based on the old bond regulatory agreements that had shorter terms. He stated that this correlates with what was previously said "where now everybody comes in at the 55 year mark." Furthermore, Mr. Kass states that the qualified project period is a category where all developers are receiving points, therefore he recommends removing this.

<u>Mr. Zeto</u> mentioned that the last category is the tie-breaker and that the 4% and 9% have different tie breakers. Furthermore, Mr. Zeto suggested wanting to have both CDLAC and TCAC utilize the same tie-breaker to have the same results.

<u>Ms. Blackwell</u> mentioned that the TCAC 9% tie-breaker is much more complex than CDLAC's. She suggests that the new tie-breaker meet somewhere in the middle.

<u>Ms. Boatman-Patterson</u> stated that she wanted to remind the Board that on the bond side, there were some efficiency measures which she believed contributed to the increased production and developers began "sharpening their pencils," which in turn allowed the board to get "more bigger bang for our investment." Furthermore, Ms. Boatman-Patterson stated that the bonds have a measurement for efficiency to measure the amount of bonds per unit. Lastly, she mentioned that this is new for developers and it had been difficult for some to grasp, and stated "but in this era of increased need and fewer and fewer resources, we all have to come together and figure out how to be more efficient."

<u>Mr. Zeto</u> clarified with Ms. Boatman-Patterson that her statement is exactly what the board is proposing in using efficiency measures along with CDLAC's.

Ms. Blackwell asked Mr. Zeto if he could talk about the equation he had been working on.

<u>Mr. Zeto</u> stated that his equation was unpolished but that it was "basically a combination with the units in the numerator, and then the denominator was a combination of the federal credits and state credits. That ratio will be added to the CDLAC tie-breaker that currently exists."

Ms. Blackwell asked Mr. Kass if he could restate the CDLAC tie-breaker?

Mr. Kass stated that it "is bond allocation over total restricted units."

<u>Ms. Blackwell</u> stated that after doing those two ratios, there is another factor that they were dividing it by, so that a project with state tax credits would not be disadvantaged over a project without state tax credits.

<u>Mr. Zeto</u> stated that the federal credits is an annual figure and the full figure needs to be taken into account because the state credit applications could be put at a disadvantage against those requesting only federal credits. Furthermore, he stated that since state credit applications are competing with the same projects that are federal only, there would need to be a "dampening effect" on the state credit.

<u>Ms. Boatman-Patterson</u> stated that on existing federal tax credit programs, "you have to fully utilize all of your federal credits before you can draw down on any of the state credits," so, she asked how to ensure that developers draw down on their federal state credits to ensure that state resources are used efficiently.

<u>Mr. Zeto</u> stated that on the 9% side under certain cases, there is a requirement where basis is required to be maximized with federal credit in order to access the state credit, with exceptions.

<u>Ms. Boatman-Patterson</u> stated that she is bringing this up for staff to review and analyze with their review of the deferred and forgone developer fee.

<u>Ms. Miller</u> mentioned that she does not think that holding the tie-breaker as the most important factor is the reason for increased production and stated that there were \$500 million dollars in state tax credits. She stated that in terms of the bond efficiency measure, she does not want to advantage one type of HCD-funded program over another, because in that sense "winners and losers" are chosen. Therefore, she states that more work needs to be considered when coming up with these regulation changes.

<u>Ms. Blackwell</u> thanked Ms. Miller for her clarification and wanted to remind the board of the importance of the \$500 million dollars in state tax credit and the significance it had towards the increase of production. Ms. Blackwell stated that the \$500 million dollars in state tax credit caused a provision of increasing production of units to be put in place as a response to the requirements in AB101.

<u>Mr. Sertich</u> thanked Ms. Boatman-Patterson, Ms. Miller, and Ms. Blackwell on their points. Mr. Sertich asked how long these changes are going to work with other changes proposed in regards to the scoring system?

<u>Ms. Blackwell</u> responded that they are looking at these changes anywhere from six to eight months from now, but that changes are not ready to be made because people still need more data. Ms. Blackwell suggested that TCAC and CDLAC work with the same score sheet when looking at these applications, to come up with the same result. She further stated that "we are just trying to blend the two equations rather than run one equation in one department and then run another equation in another department...We are not really trying to come up with something new. We are just trying to come up with something that from the implementation perspective does not create chaos."

Mr. Velasquez wanted to thank Ms. Miller for her earlier statements on "winners and losers."

<u>Ms. Boatman-Patterson</u> stated that the bonds and tax credits should continue to be fairly neutral, not picking "winners and losers." The priorities of the state are the funding that the state is bringing in or the local government is bringing in during the allocation, and the scoring system should remain neutral. Furthermore, she states that the statute says that "we want to have cost efficiency and the efficiency of public resources."

<u>Treasurer Ma</u> mentioned that there may be a few more comments from the board then, it would be time for public comment discussion.

<u>Mr. Zeto</u> mentioned that the next category involves 70% or 80% AMI units relating to income averaging in TCAC. He recommended to be aligned with CDLAC, the term "Restricted Units" should be amended to "TCAC Restricted Units" to cover the 70 and 80% units.

<u>Mr. Kass</u> mentioned that this would be used for all the point categories. The TCAC definition of restrictive units would be used.

<u>Ms. Boatman-Patterson</u> mentioned that this is a conversation that the board has been having since April and this regulation change deals with allowing the federal rule that allows for income averaging to not be disadvantaging income averaged units.

<u>Mr. Zeto</u> mentioned that density was a subject that came up as the 9% transit has a density point option and recommended that a similar option be added for building the maximum density of the site.

<u>Ms. Blackwell</u> thanked Ms. Boatman-Patterson and Mr. Zeto for their comments and stated that this is symbolic to a lot of work done by the staff.

<u>Treasurer Ma</u> stated that it is helpful to have these meetings as it is important to have direction from the Board so that the staff, in between meetings, are talking about the regulations, definitions, and looking for feedback. Treasurer Ma opened up the meeting for public comment and asked the participants to email the questions with their organization information.

## Public Comment:

<u>Caleb Roope</u> thanked the Treasurer and the committee members. Mr. Roope was speaking on behalf of his working group and discussed what the staff was proposing. He stated that there were some issues in the current scoring system that needed to be addressed, such as a heavy bias for qualified census tracts, community revitalization areas, and large family projects as more developers achieve full points and head to a tie-breaker. He stated that projects in the Bay Area are going to have more of a disadvantage under the current CDLAC proposal as these projects compete with others as "they tend to be denser, they tend to be more expensive, and the costs are just higher in general".

Furthermore, he recommended that a tie-breaker approach with efficiency would be important to be efficient with resources and it would be important to look at set-asides and regional allocation. He stated that as a working group, he felt that the alignment of CDLAC and TCAC is important as HCD is to the funding they have provided and the state tax credits. As a result, he stated that he believed there should be a set-aside for homeless projects because "homeless projects are not going to compete well in any kind of efficiency-based system". Mr. Roope indicated that if the board moves to this efficiency based tie-breaker, then geographic allocations and regions would need to be put in so that projects similar in nature are competing with each other. He stated that "you don't have San Francisco projects competing with Fresno projects on an efficiency based tie-breaker at the end of the day."

<u>Treasurer Ma</u> thanked Mr. Roope. Treasurer Ma stated that there was a plan to have another meeting on August  $21^{st}$ .

Ms. Blackwell mentioned that the next meeting is on August 21<sup>st</sup> at 11:00 a.m.

<u>Treasurer Ma</u> mentioned that the following meeting should be more of a policy meeting discussion as some members were not ready to discuss policy during this meeting. Mr. Zeto and Mr. Kass presented their preliminary discussions about the policies to be discussed at the next set of regulation changes.

<u>Mr. Sertich</u> thanked Mr. Roope and the working group for the work they have been doing and the discussions had at the Controller's Office. Mr. Sertich wanted to make the changes necessary to drive the state's public policy and housing policy forward, referring back to Ms. Miller's previous comments. He stated that it was important to make sure that the programs are working better, but also to make sure the outcomes are enhanced. Though there are \$500 million dollars "on the line," Mr. Sertich would rather not rush the process and would prefer taking the necessary steps to make it right.

<u>Treasurer Ma</u> stated that this is all an "evolving process." Furthermore, she said that "what we decide this year may be different next year and the year after depending on market conditions."

<u>Ms. Boatman-Patterson</u> mentioned that she is "struggling with the bias that we give for qualified census tracks (QCT), because when I start looking at the data, on the 9% side we actually do incentivize higher

opportunity areas but we don't necessarily do that on the bonds and tax credits side." Ms. Boatman-Patterson wanted to hear Mr. Roope's thoughts on how to deal with that bias and incentivizing segregated concentrated areas of poverty.

<u>Caleb Roope</u> stated that there is a federally related requirement on the tax credit side that states projects in qualified census tracts do need to be encouraged. Furthermore, Mr. Roope explained: "I think anything you can do to neutralize it or to make it something you can achieve points for but then you can also achieve these other points would be the answer." He stated that when you give points to a project in a tie-breaking system, the projects that are in QCTs are always going to be funded if other projects score all other points. Additionally, he stated that to be funded in the existing system, the project had to be large family, in a QCT, or a preservation project, therefore stating that changes are necessary.

<u>Ms. Blackwell</u> thanked Mr. Roope for his suggestions, as the board has been struggling with this issue in regards to opportunity maps.

<u>Ms. Miller</u> thanked Mr. Roope for presenting and mentioned that during TCAC meetings, she learns more about whether or not those would work together or need to be treated separately. Ms. Miller agrees with Mr. Roope on needing an original approach if keeping some type of efficiency tie-breaker and she also agrees with Ms. Boatman-Patterson on her census tract statements. Ms. Miller states that changes need to be finished first to see the whole picture.

<u>Ms. Boatman-Patterson</u> mentioned a big tidal wave that is getting ready to appear. Furthermore, she mentions that while the focus is on the tidal wave, what is the board doing to "shore up the walls to ensure those tenants are protected?"

Treasurer Ma asked Ms. Boatman-Patterson to repeat her statement.

<u>Ms. Boatman-Patterson</u> stated that many units are getting ready to lose their affordability covenants, so it is important to talk about tenant protection, anti-displacement and affordability preservation strategies. She stated that this is not really thought about with the bond and tax credit deals, but large evictions are soon to displace many due to the COVID crisis and people losing their incomes. Furthermore, Ms. Boatman-Patterson added "what are we doing on our affordable housing portfolio to ensure that we are doing everything we can?"

<u>Ms. Blackwell</u> thanked Ms. Boatman-Patterson for her statements. Ms. Blackwell mentioned that this is going to be a huge policy issue and we made some regulation changes this year with regard to relocation at the staff level. Furthermore, she stated that the at-risk piece that was added was in regard to preservation projects and is designed to take projects like this and move them to the front of the preservation pool.

<u>Mr. Roope</u> mentioned that his working group is focused on the issue of the loss of affordability and they have developed a ranking of the priorities and will be ready to share with the board soon. Mr. Roope stated Robin Hughes, co-chair in Doug Shoemaker's absence, may be available for comments.

Treasurer Ma asked Ms. Hughes to type in her public comments as they would be read off.

<u>Robin Hughes</u> thanked the committee for trying to align the CDLAC program with other state policies. She mentioned that the group will be completely prepared to have an update at the next CDLAC meeting.

<u>Treasurer Ma</u> stated that she wanted to make an amendment to the public comment. She stated that if a participant is on a Zoom call, that the committee would be able to hear the participant. She asked participants to please raise their hands and they would be let in. Participants would be called up when it is their turn and their speaker would be un-muted. She thanked the previous participant and asked for Mr. William Leach to speak.

<u>Mr. Leach</u> stated that changes to the system will take time, but that it is a great plan. He stated that simple changes in the scoring system, such as making the housing types available to multiple types rather than just large family projects would remove a bias in the system. Mr. Leach is supportive of Mr. Roope's response of dealing with the QCT issue of "remove it, strike it" and Mr. Sertich's response of a robust system leading to efficient projects. Mr. Leach was also supportive of Mr. Sertich's idea of TCAC managing the QRRPs program as in the CDLAC points categories. It states that points given are from the TCAC regulations and restated to refer back to TCAC. Mr. Leach emphasized that incentivizing housing in higher opportunity areas and QCTs feels like a question for an HCD or CalHFA program, but does agree that CDLAC is a "backbone." Furthermore, Mr. Leach stated that the foregone developer fee should be stricken because "I don't think it fits with what we are asking developers to do, to be more cost efficient; to use lower bond requests." He stated that with COVID and construction costs soaring, developers are "worried about meeting the 50% test."

# Treasurer Ma thanked Mr. Leach.

Ms. Blackwell thanked Mr. Leach for his input in regard to what happens in discussions about the tiebreaker.

<u>Ben Barker, CMFA</u> thanked the CDLAC and TCAC Board, the Chair, and all staff for the direction that this board has been going in. Mr. Barker mentioned that when the applications go non-competitive, it is important to think about the scoring as to not place burdens or obstacles on projects to have certain amount of points. He states that if developers "can have lower points but be more efficient and add more units in a non-competitive round, I think that this is something to think about too as we move forward on how we come up with a scoring system and tie-breakers."

Ann Wilson wanted to thank the committee for their work of these discussions. She introduced herself as the Director of Development and Strategic Initiatives and Policy at Chelsea Investment Corporation, where in the last thirty years, Chelsea has produced over ten-thousand apartment units, largely with tax credits and bonds. Ms. Wilson stated that Chelsea owns and operates hundreds of properties throughout California, including affordable units for people who are homeless. She stated that as the company looked at these proposed changes to the regulation, they thought about the impact of their projects in the pipeline that are diverse. She mentioned that it is important to look at programs that would address all of California in their pipeline. She stated that Chelsea strongly recommends providing at least 12 months lead time before any major changes take effect to "allow developers to adapt their projects and pipelines to the policy changes to give scoring of calculation different weights to address different priorities. In talking about the developer fees, she stated that developer fees are crucial as a contingency in case something unexpected happens. As a closing remark, Ms. Wilson encouraged the committee to consider her changes to allow developers more lead time to adapt their development pipelines to the proposed regulation changes.

### Treasurer Ma thanked Ms. Wilson.

<u>Tom Anders</u> introduced himself as the President of the National Housing and Rehabilitation Association, a national trade group of affordable housing developers, with many active in developing in California. He wanted to commend the committee for their openness in this process. He stated that other state agencies do not give this level of attention to the development community practitioners before implementing changes. Mr. Anders stated that "the developer fee does a lot of different things for the affordable housing operator" as he mentions that one needs "to have fair compensation to take into account all the risks that are taken in these complicated, highly elaborate bond transactions." Mr. Anders stated that the developer fee is what has paid for residence services at properties and for the increased expenses related to COVID-19, therefore mentioning that "this cushion is really essential, particularly in more challenging times." Mr. Anders thanked the committee.

### Treasurer Ma thanked Mr. Anders.

<u>Pedro Galvao</u> introduced himself as a Policy Director at the Non-Profit Housing Association of Northern California. He wanted to echo one comment made on the existing experience points category and its structure and stated that smaller community banks serving organizations have a hard time entering the field due to this category. Mr. Galvao stated that the Non-Profit Housing Association suggested to the Treasurer and Ms. Miller to address these concerns and would appreciate having more time to vet through the proposed changes to present before committee meetings. He thanked the committee for their time.

<u>Treasurer Ma</u> thanked Mr. Galvao and stated that today's meeting was only informational and no items were to be voted on. The next meeting on August 21<sup>st</sup> is an opportunity to weigh-in on and send in concerns heard at this meeting.

<u>Ms. Blackwell</u> wanted to reiterate that the program's proposed changes are subject to public hearing and most of the times the public hears some of these proposed regulations with details at these hearings. There are also public comment periods, which have not happened yet.

<u>Pedro Galvao</u> thanked Ms. Blackwell for her clarification and stated that he misinterpreted when it said it was an action item.

<u>Ms. Blackwell</u> stated that "our hands are tied once we send out the agenda, 10 days in advance." Furthermore, Ms. Blackwell stated that if the board wanted to move towards adoption of one of the staff options, the action item would have to be put in the agenda.

## Mr. Galvao thanked Ms. Blackwell.

Paul Beesmyer thanked Treasurer Ma. Mr. Beesmyer introduced himself as working with the California Housing Partnership and mentioned that he supports the idea of aligning TCAC and CDLAC scoring systems and believes that it is impractical to put larger system changes in place for the upcoming program year. He believes that whether the CDLAC system is left intact and continues with some type of efficiency based tie-breaker for the new program year, whether or not aligned with TCAC still makes sense to "subset regional bond pools similar to what the California Construction and Housing working group is proposing, to ensure the higher density, higher cost regions are not disadvantaged." Mr. Beesmyer stated that system changes, even if small, should work toward emphasizing soft funding commitments made by the state and by localities. Mr. Beesmyer stated that the California Housing Partnership supports the use of CDLAC's leveraging definition to align with TCAC's. Furthermore, Mr. Beesmyer supports the undertaking of bond recycling, however the California Housing Partnership does not support the idea including recycled or taxable tail bonds in the calculation of leveraging bonds as the taxable tail provisions do not correlate with the way that 100% affordable projects are structured, so he recommends getting rid of this. Furthermore, Mr. Beesmyer added that the notion of a developer fee was added in the CDLAC system before TCAC uncapped the developers fee for 4% projects, allowing it to go to 15% of basis. He states this was done as a way to allow developer fees to increase to be included in the eligible basis and allow for the 4% credit.

Treasurer Ma thanked Mr. Beesmyer and asked for Mr. Sertich's input.

<u>Mr. Sertich</u> stated that he appreciates all the work that CHPC has been doing and that he resonates with Mr. Beesmyer's statements about the recycling bond program and the need to encourage it, but also being careful as to how far it is encouraged. He mentioned that CHPC did a study that demonstrated that "if all of the state resources and local resources were leveraged, we would still be 50 % to 100% over-subscribed for CDLAC," therefore Mr. Sertich stated that policy decisions in the regulations as to which projects are to be prioritized would need to be made. Furthermore, Mr. Sertich wanted to make sure that the committee is funding the best projects.

<u>Ms. Boatman-Patterson</u> mentioned that she does not agree with Mr. Beesmyer on the recycled bonds as these bonds are a new resource, therefore more discussion needs to happen. Ms. Boatman-Patterson disagrees because CDLAC is in a competitive bond era and with using "less of your initial bonds when you can come in and use the recycled bonds. We want to incentivize this as much as we can." Furthermore, she states that it is important to look at the system in its entirety. When a decent scoring system is put in place, some of the best projects will come out of that.

<u>Mr. Beesmyer</u> responded to Ms. Boatman-Patterson's comment on his response and agreed that it is important to further look into bond recycling, especially if there are changes at the federal level. Furthermore, he states that there may be different places to incentivize the use of recycled bonds.

<u>Ms. Boatman-Patterson</u> stated that she would like to have conversations about their definition of leveraging "because layering is not leverage." She further stated that "so when you put state money on top of state money, on top of state money, that should not be counted as leverage. This is layering. Now when you are bringing in federal dollars, local dollars and then state dollars, then I might say that this is leveraging because you are leveraging a resource outside of the State of California."

<u>Treasurer Ma</u> asked, before going to general public comment, if anyone on the zoom call line wanted to make a public comment.

# 4. Public Comment:

No public comments.

Treasurer Ma adjourned the meeting until August 21st at 11:00 a.m.